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Today’s Greatest Hits (and Misses):
Due Process Hearing and Resolution 

Case Review

Fry v. Napoleon Cmty. Sch.
137 S. Ct. 743 (2017)

§E.F. has cerebral palsy
§Parents bought “Wonder” the goldendoodle
service dog who assisted E.F. with regular “life 
activities”

§Parents requested that Wonder attend school
§School denied the request

Endrew F. v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. 
137 S. Ct. 988 (2017)

§Student with autism 
• Parents claimed that IEP had same basic goals from 
year to year

§Removed from public school and enrolled in 
“Firefly Autism House” 
• Behavior improved dramatically 
• Made “a degree of academic progress that had eluded 
him in public school” 

mailto:ksb@ksbschoollaw.com
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Endrew F. v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. 
137 S. Ct. 988 (2017)

§School presented a new IEP 6 months after private 
school enrollment
§Parents rejected because similar BIP
§Filed d.p. for tuition reimbursement
• Contended that final IEP was not “reasonably 
calculated to enable Endrew to receive educational 
benefits.”

Endrew F. v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. 
137 S. Ct. 988 (2017)

§ALJ found for school
§District Court found for school
• performance under past IEPs “did not reveal immense 
educational growth”
• annual modifications to IEP were “sufficient to show a 
pattern of, at the least, minimal progress”

§10th Circuit found for school
• School’s IEP was calculated to confer “some
educational benefit”

Endrew F. v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. 
137 S. Ct. 988 (2017)

§Supreme Court granted certiorari 
§Unanimous decision to remand to district court
§Court: It true that Rowley said “some education 
benefit” - but in Rowley the issue was not whether 
student was receiving minimum of benefit 
§”An IEP is not a form document”
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Endrew F. v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. 
137 S. Ct. 988 (2017)

§For a child integrated in the regular classroom
• “an IEP typically should . . . be reasonably calculated 
to enable the child to achieve passing marks and 
advance from grade to grade.”
• When a child is fully integrated in the regular 
classroom, as the Act prefers, what that typically 
means is providing a level of instruction reasonably 
calculated to permit advancement through the general 
curriculum.”[footnote]

Endrew F. v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. 
137 S. Ct. 988 (2017)

§For a child not integrated into regular classroom
• “If that is not a reasonable prospect for a child, his IEP 

need not aim for grade-level advancement. But his educational 
program must be appropriately ambitious in light of his 
circumstances. . . 
• “…every child should have the chance to meet challenging 

objectives.”
• “…this standard is markedly more demanding that the 

‘merely more de minimis’ test. . . 

Endrew F. v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. 
137 S. Ct. 988 (2017)

§“a student offered an educational program providing 
’merely more than de minimis’ progress from year to year 
can hardly be said to have been offered an education at 
all.”
§“The IDEA demands more.  It demands an educational 
program reasonably calculated to enable a child to make 
progress appropriate in light of the child’s 
circumstances.”
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Endrew F. on Remand
2018 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22111 (Feb. 12, 2018)

§Parents – 10th Cir. said “close case” under old standard; 
and that SCOTUS decision
§School – IEP was not "ideal," but it was a reasonable 
calculation of educational progress
• Objectives in reading comp., writing, math, communication and 

inter/intra-personal goals increased from prior IEPs
• IEP addressed special and unique circumstances of Endrew’s

autism, ADHD, behaviors, sensory needs 

Endrew F. on Remand
2018 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22111 (Feb. 12, 2018)

§In other words, “appropriately ambitious in light of 
his circumstances”
§Court
• Previously ruled “minimal progress”
• Small IEP changes = “some educational benefit”
• Progress was “minimal at best”

Endrew F. on Remand
2018 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 22111 (Feb. 12, 2018)

“The District's inability to develop a formal plan or 
properly address Plaintiff's behaviors . . . impact 
the assessment of whether [IEP] it offered to 
[Endrew] was or was not reasonably calculated to 
enable him to make progress appropriate in light of 
his circumstances.
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Fry v. Napoleon Cmty. Sch.
137 S. Ct. 743 (2017)

§School: “Under E. F.’s existing IEP, a human aide 
provided E. F. with one-on-one support 
throughout the day; that two-legged assistance, 
the school officials thought, rendered Wonder 
superfluous. In the words of one administrator, 
Wonder should be barred from Ezra Eby because 
all of E. F.’s “physical and academic needs [were] 
being met through the services/programs/ 
accommodations” that the school had already 
agreed to.”

Fry v. Napoleon Cmty. Sch.
137 S. Ct. 743 (2017)

§Parents filed OCR complaint and homeschooled
§OCR: a school can provide FAPE and still 
discriminate
• The school’s action is like “requiring a student who 
uses a wheelchair to be carried”
• School violated Title II of ADA and Section 504

Fry v. Napoleon Cmty. Sch.
137 S. Ct. 743 (2017)

§Other school “enthusiastically accepted” Wonder
§Parents sued
§District Court and 6th Circuit: parents must 
exhaust under IDEA 

§SCOTUS: “We must decide ‘confusion’ of 
exhaustion requirement.”
• “Important as the IDEA is for children with disabilities, 
it is not the only federal statute protecting their 
interests.”
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Fry v. Napoleon Cmty. Sch.
137 S. Ct. 743 (2017)

“…the IDEA guarantees individually tailored 
educational services, while [the ADA] and § 504 
promise nondiscriminatory access to public 
institutions. That is not to deny some overlap in 
coverage: The same conduct might violate all 
three statutes . . . . But still, the statutory 
differences just discussed mean that a complaint 
brought under Title II and § 504 might instead 
seek relief for simple discrimination, irrespective of 
the IDEA's FAPE obligation.”

Fry v. Napoleon Cmty. Sch.
137 S. Ct. 743 (2017)

§New test for determining if exhaustion applies
§Does the lawsuit seek relief for a denial of FAPE?
• If “yes,” must exhaust
• If “no,” proceed to prong 2

§ What is the “gravamen” of the lawsuit?
• “First, could the plaintiff have brought essentially the same 
claim if the alleged conduct had occurred at a public facility 
that was not a school—say, a public theater or library?”
• “And second, could an adult at the school—say, an employee 
or visitor— have pressed essentially the same grievance?”

Harris v. Cleveland City Bd. of Ed.
71 IDELR 189 (E.D. Tenn. 2018)

§Student with autism and ADHD had 504 plan in 
place

§School district determined the student was not 
eligible for services under the IDEA

§Mother disagreed with the evaluation’s findings, 
and requested an IEE

§IEE determined the student “may” be eligible for 
IDEA services, and an IEP meeting should be held
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Harris v. Cleveland City Bd. of Ed.
71 IDELR 189 (E.D. Tenn. 2018)

§IEP meeting held roughly one month after the 
student turned 18

§The student attended with his mother 
• Student stated he did not need special education 
services, and the district did not put any in place

§Mother disagreed with the decision and filed suit
• Alleged the district violated the Rehabilitation Act and 
the IDEA by not providing special education services

Harris v. Cleveland City Bd. of Ed.
71 IDELR 189 (E.D. Tenn. 2018)

§As the suit was pending, the student concluded the 
spring semester with high grades and graduated with a 
regular diploma

§Court: Dismissed all claims
• District created and implemented a 504 plan with fidelity
• IDEA provides that when a child reaches the age of majority, all 

rights conferred by the IDEA transfer to the eligible student
−Eighteen age of majority under state law

• “Therefore, when Michael declined special education services 
during the . . . meeting with school personnel, his position was 
controlling.”

Brevard (FL) Pub. Sch.
70 IDELR 163 (OCR 2017) 

§IEP of a student with a disability provided that he 
be allowed to use his personal cell phone to take 
pictures of notes on the classroom board
• Also provided copies of notes

§After IEP was implemented, there were a number 
of disciplinary issues related to the cell phone use
• Issues persisted despite discipline
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Brevard (FL) Pub. Sch.
70 IDELR 163 (OCR 2017) 

§Several teachers deviated from the IEP and 
prohibited the student from bringing the cellphone 
into class

§Parents filed a complaint with OCR alleging a 
denial of FAPE from failure to implement IEP

§OCR: Failure to implement the provisions of an 
IEP may deny the student a FAPE
• Did not determine if student was denied FAPE as the 
district came to a resolution agreement on the issue

Connecticut Technical High Sch. Sys.
118 LRP 17346 (Conn. SEA 2018)

§Student with ADHD, depression, and anxiety faced 
discipline after adding liquid Novocain numbing cream to 
his math teacher’s straw

§Teacher reported the issue to school administrators who 
launched an investigation into the incident

§Student admitted he gave another tube of the gel to a 
different student
• Also admitted that he and other students used the cream at 

lunch time because the numbing effect felt “funny”

Connecticut Technical High Sch. Sys.
118 LRP 17346 (Conn. SEA 2018)

§Student suspended 10 days and was recommended for 
expulsion

§MDR did not find that there was a pattern of misbehavior 
prior to the incident
• Further found the behavior was not directly or substantially 

related to the student’s disability and the student’s IEP was 
implemented properly

§Parents took issue with the MDR findings and 
brought a due process challenge
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Connecticut Technical High Sch. Sys.
118 LRP 17346 (Conn. SEA 2018)

§Parents relied on testimony from an expert 
indicating that the student’s behavior was a result 
of low self-esteem affected by his disability

§H.O.: Ruled for school; MDR decision correct
• “Behavior caused by low self-esteem which has 
resulted from a disability is legally insufficient to 
support a finding that the behavior is a manifestation 
of a student's disability.”
• Pattern of misconduct is necessary, yet absent here

Bonsall Unified Sch. Dist. v. Richard C.
56 NDLR 135 (S.D. Cal. 2018)

§School district sought to overturn an administrative 
decision requiring reimbursement for the private 
placement of a former student

§Dispute centered around the education of a 10 year old 
girl with behavioral and emotional issues

§Student exhibited serious symptoms including defiance, 
impulsivity, shouting, screaming, anxiety, biting, hitting, 
scratching, and destroying property

§Also reported seeing ghosts in her home, school, and 
playground

Bonsall Unified Sch. Dist. v. Richard C.
56 NDLR 135 (S.D. Cal. 2018)

§Behavior in kindergarten and first grade was 
violent and disruptive
• Defiance, impulsivity, shouting, screaming, anxiety, 
biting, hitting, scratching, and destroying property

§Second grade placement involved instruction in 
the general education setting 95% of the time
• Behavior issues persisted in second grade and 
culminated when the student tried to stab someone 
with a screwdriver, tried to stab someone with a 
pencil, stabbed herself, and started a fire



9/28/18

10

Bonsall Unified Sch. Dist. v. Richard C.
56 NDLR 135 (S.D. Cal. 2018)

§Despite these issues, a similar placement was 
offered for third grade
• Soon after, parents placed student in private school

§Administrative hearing resulted in district being 
required to pay private placement tuition

§District appealed in court, and parents brought 
additional counterclaims the district sought to 
have dismissed
• Counterclaims permitted

Meekins v. Cleveland Cty. Bd. of Ed.
118 LRP 22863 (W.D.N.C. 2018)

§Parents of a child with autism and anxiety brought 
claims alleging a denial of FAPE under Section 504, 
excessive force, negligent infliction of emotional distress, 
and negligence

§Student’s IEP contained a detailed Behavioral 
Intervention Plan (BIP) that provided the mother should 
be called if behavior issues arise
• BIP specifically stated that police officers should only be called 

if the student’s safety was in danger
• Specific that no male should engage in restraint of or touch the 

student

Meekins v. Cleveland Cty. Bd. of Ed.
118 LRP 22863 (W.D.N.C. 2018)

§After difficulties in her morning class, the student 
asked her teacher if she could call her mother
• Conflict ensued after teacher denied the request

§Student tried exiting the classroom, and was 
blocked by a teacher and aide who sought help

§Assistant principal and Officer Davis (SRO) 
responded to the classroom
• Asst. Principal suggested a move to a different room, 
and the student declined before things turned violent
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Meekins v. Cleveland Cty. Bd. of Ed.
118 LRP 22863 (W.D.N.C. 2018)

§ Officer Davis grabbed at the student, who struggled with him, and 
then shoved her into another room and onto the floor. As the 
student attempted to get up from the floor, the officer pushed her 
back down, got on top of her, and attempted to handcuff the 
student. The student resisted and struggled
• “Officer Davis punched [her] face. Officer Davis then placed his hand on 

[her] neck and proceeded to punch her again and again.”

§ Struggle continued as the officer continued striking the student, 
and twice administered pepper spray
• “No one tried to stop the attack.”

§ When paramedics arrived, the student was on the floor bloodied, 
hysterical, and handcuffed

Meekins v. Cleveland Cty. Bd. of Ed.
118 LRP 22863 (W.D.N.C. 2018)

§ “The weekend following the attack, Officer Davis was notified he 
was going to be taken out of [the school] for unspecified reasons. 
Less than a month later, Davis was reinstated as a school resource 
officer at [the school].” 

§ After removing the student from the school, the parents filed the 
above mentioned claims in federal court

§ Court dismissed claims
• Required exhaustion for IDEA claims
• Declined to hold school liable for SRO’s conduct on constitutional claim
• Declined to exert supplemental jurisdiction over state claims

Weiser v. Elizabethtown Area Sch. Dist., 
56 NDLR 170 (E.D. Pa. 2018)

§Student with autism and ADHD was fatally struck 
by a vehicle as he walked home from school

§IEP for the year did not include any services to 
assist him in getting to or from school

§Parents of the deceased brought suit against the 
student’s school district, alleging that the district 
failed to meet their obligations under the ADA 
and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act when it 
did not provide transportation service
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Weiser v. Elizabethtown Area Sch. Dist., 
56 NDLR 170 (E.D. Pa. 2018)

§District sought dismissal arguing that the parents had an 
opportunity under the IDEA to raise concerns regarding 
the IEP in administrative due process hearings. 
• Failure to exhaust these administrative remedies under the 

IDEA barred them from bringing suit under the ADA and 
Rehabilitation Act

§Parents: Exhaustion unnecessary because its futile
§Court: Current factual scenario was exactly the type of 
extraordinary context contemplated when the futility 
exception was created

Brown v. Elk Grove Unified Sch. Dist., 
71 IDELR 163 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§A district’s attempt to have claims against it dismissed 
failed as the student sufficiently plead claims of disability 
discrimination associated with high school basketball
• Due to the preliminary nature of the district’s motion to 

dismiss, the court was not evaluating the merits of the 
complaint
• Rather, Court considered whether or not the plaintiffs 

sufficiently plead the elements of the complaint
§Claims arose after a district found a student was not 
emotionally fit to play varsity athletics

Brown v. Elk Grove Unified Sch. Dist., 
71 IDELR 163 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§To establish discrimination on the basis of disability, the 
student needed to demonstrate that:
• He had a qualifying disability;
• He was entitled to participate in basketball;
• He was excluded from varsity basketball;
• His exclusion was based on his disability.

§Court: As alleged, the facts amounted to a showing of 
the requisite elements and the case was permitted to 
proceed
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District of Columbia Pub. Sch.
118 LRP 6333 (D.C. SEA 2018)

§Parents pursued a due process complaint alleging that 
the district denied the student FAPE because the IEP and 
placement was not suitably restrictive

§The student had a pattern of very serious behavioral 
issues
• Property destruction
• Random attacks on peers
• Disrespect towards staff

§Although behavior gradually became less severe, issues 
flared when he was being re-evaluated for IDEA services

District of Columbia Pub. Sch.
118 LRP 6333 (D.C. SEA 2018)

§ On one day of observation, the “student got on top of a radiator 
at school threatening to jump out the window and make a ‘devil 
robot’ to kill everyone”

§ Student was “far below” grade level in academic performance
§ H.O.: Although parents have prima facie case, district rebutted it 

with documentation of its IEP considerations and revisions
• Setting was increasingly restrictive, and behavior was improving
• While the student’s progress was dissatisfactory, the IEP was reasonably 

calculated to allow progress in light of the child’s circumstances
• Not only was IEP adequate, but it was implemented in a satisfactory manner

Cordero v. Picayune Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 27735 (S.D. Miss. 2018)

§Mother and two sons diagnosed with a condition 
causing hearing issues
• Mother is deaf
• Both students hard of hearing

§Family primarily communicates in ASL
§Brought suit in district court alleging violations of 
the ADA and Section 504, after the school district 
did not follow mother’s recommendation to 
implement ASL services in the students’ IEPs
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Cordero v. Picayune Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 27735 (S.D. Miss. 2018)

§District argued that the mother’s claims were precluded 
under the IDEA, as she failed to exhaust her 
administrative remedies

§Court: Under Fry exhaustion is required when the 
gravamen of the complaint seeks redress for a school’s 
failure to provide FAPE
• Here, because the mother alleged a loss of educational 

benefits, and the suit was the culmination of years of efforts to 
see a change to the student’s educational services, the suit 
sought redress for a denial of FAPE

§Dismissed claims for failure to exhaust

Vilonia Sch. Dist.
72 IDELR 136 (Ark. SEA 2018)

§Student, 15-year old male, eligible for IDA 
services as an individual with TBI
• Behaviorally, the student struggled with respectfully 
interacting with school staff and with work avoidance

§On March 1, 2018, the principal of the school the 
student attended was informed of a threatening 
social media post from the student
• Post depicted the student holding a gun of some type, 
with a message that read “I love it when they run.”

Vilonia Sch. Dist.
72 IDELR 136 (Ark. SEA 2018)

§Principal notified the local police, who confronted 
the student about the message
• Student indicated that the image depicted an airsoft 
gun, that he was not serious, and did not intend to 
carry out any threats

§The next day, additional audio clips and social 
media posts emerged, in which the student made 
further threatening statements and referred to 
committing suicide
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Vilonia Sch. Dist.
72 IDELR 136 (Ark. SEA 2018)

§In light of this behavior, the district recommended 
the student be expelled and sought to place him 
in an IAES

§Parents filed complaint challenging placement in 
an IAES, arguing that the student did not qualify 
for such a placement under the IDEA

§District: Student’s removal justified based upon 
the posts and statements

Vilonia Sch. Dist.
72 IDELR 136 (Ark. SEA 2018)

§H.O.: IDEA allows for a student to be removed to 
an IAES for not more than 45 school days without 
regard to whether the behavior is a manifestation 
of the student’s disability if...
• the child brings a weapon to school;
• inflicts serious bodily injury on another person at 
school; or
• knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs or sells or 
solicits the sale of a controlled substance, while at 
school, on school premises, or at a school function.

Vilonia Sch. Dist.
72 IDELR 136 (Ark. SEA 2018)

§H.O.: Student’s behavior did not fall under any of 
the provisions
• Social media posts were not directed at any specific 
individuals, or the school itself, and the student’s 
behavior was likely a cry for help

§The hearing officer determined the student was 
not dangerous to himself or others, and the 
district did not have the authority to remove the 
student to an IAES following a 10-day suspension
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A.T. v. Dry Creek Joint Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 26788 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§Parents of a student with bipolar disorder and ADHD 
survived summary judgment on claims that a district 
violated their son’s rights through excessive use of 
restraint

§Child’s IEP authorized “therapeutic containment” in 
situations when “external controls are unsuccessful and 
a student’s behavior is escalating to such a degree that 
there is a clear and present danger of bodily harm to self 
or others.”
• Such restraint was only to be used when it was clear that no 

other less restrictive intervention would be effective

A.T. v. Dry Creek Joint Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 26788 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§Restraint was defined as placing the student on 
the floor and holding him down until he regained 
control

§IEP required notification of the student’s parents 
on each use of restraint

§Over the three years after the operative restraint 
provisions were incorporated, the student was 
restrained and secluded 112 times
• Many of which went unreported to the parents

A.T. v. Dry Creek Joint Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 26788 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§Court: Without deciding the truth of the 
allegations, the number of uses of restraint was 
factually sufficient to support the claim that the 
district infringed upon the student’s right to be 
free from unwarranted or unreasonable seizure

§Claims bolstered by fact that parents were not 
informed of the uses
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Pea Ridge School District
54 NDLR 68 (DOJ 2016)

§An Arkansas district was required to retrain staff, 
revise and implement new policies after a DOJ 
investigation into alleged disability discrimination

§Investigation began after a school district barred 
three students from school and extracurricular 
activities until an HIV test was administered on 
each, with the results returned to the school
• District took this action after learning that a family 
member of the students was diagnosed with HIV

Pea Ridge School District
54 NDLR 68 (DOJ 2016)

§DOJ reminded the district that the protections of Title II 
of the ADA specifically prohibit discrimination against 
individuals because of a relationship or association with 
individuals who have a known disability
• District’s actions were directly related to the information 

regarding a family member having HIV, and ADA prohibits 
discrimination on basis of HIV status
• That the district waited to readmit the students until they 

tested negative for the disease was a clear indication of the 
discriminatory nature of the action

McKenzie v. Talladega City Bd. of Ed., et al., 
69 IDELR 149 (N.D. Ala. 2017)

§Mother of a nonverbal student with severe 
disabilities brought constitutional claims against 
both the school district and the employees 
involved when her daughter was injured during a 
bus evacuation drill

§Driver of one of the district’s special education 
buses was instructed to conduct a biennial bus 
evacuation drill
• Plaintiff student was brought to the bus for the drill
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McKenzie v. Talladega City Bd. of Ed., et al., 
69 IDELR 149 (N.D. Ala. 2017)

§Despite local rules requiring each driver and aide 
to have a written plan for the emergency 
evacuation of special education students prior to 
drills, none was prepared or in place 
• Additional safety equipment was not in place

§Student, who uses a wheelchair, is capable of 
walking short distances, so long as she has 
assistance at hand in the case that her legs give 
out

McKenzie v. Talladega City Bd. of Ed., et al., 
69 IDELR 149 (N.D. Ala. 2017)

§Once on the bus, the student was required to leave her 
wheelchair and walk towards the back of the bus to the 
emergency escape

§Once at the emergency escape, attempts to assist the 
student in exiting the bus safely failed

§Student fell from the bus onto the ground
• Student was required to walk back to the classroom, crying the 

entire time
• Subsequent ER visit showed her wrist was broken in three 

places, a bone in the neck was fractured, and that she chipped 
a bone in her back

McKenzie v. Talladega City Bd. of Ed., et al., 
69 IDELR 149 (N.D. Ala. 2017)

§Court: While the employees in question may have 
acted without reasonable care, the court noted 
that the actions were “a far cry from a coach 
intentionally striking a student in the eye with a 
metal weight lock” or metal cane, referencing 
factual scenarios that met the threshold for 
“conscience-shocking” behavior.
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Douglas Co. (Roseburg) Sch. Dist. 4
117 LRP 28087 (Or. SEA 2017)

§12-year old, non-verbal student with significant 
academic and behavior issues

§District began transitioning the student from a home 
placement and into the school setting

§Student’s attendance was poor 
• Only tolerated 45-90 minutes of school time or would refuse to 

go altogether
§ IEP provided for most learning to take place in an 
intensive one-on-one setting within a self-contained 
classroom

Douglas Co. (Roseburg) Sch. Dist. 4
117 LRP 28087 (Or. SEA 2017)

§Successful implementation of the IEP depended 
on the employment of a skilled and qualified staff

§District intended to hire a paraeducator to 
operate as the student’s 1:1 aide
• Faced “obstacle after obstacle” in an effort to hire staff

§Open positions were advertised continuously, and 
the District offered employment positions to 
several applicants

Douglas Co. (Roseburg) Sch. Dist. 4
117 LRP 28087 (Or. SEA 2017)

§Several employment offers were made, but fell 
through
• Some were unable to pass drug tests required by 
District policy
• Others were unreliable or refused the position after 
learning about the student’s aggressive behaviors

§District’s behavior specialist assigned to student
• Became frustrated with the student’s attendance and 
disputes with the parents about services provided 
−Resigned despite the district’s offer to double her salary
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Douglas Co. (Roseburg) Sch. Dist. 4
117 LRP 28087 (Or. SEA 2017)

§No staff remained to provide services
• Student was unable to return after winter break
• Not provided services for several months

§Parents filed complaint alleging the district was 
failing to meet obligations

§H.O.: District failed to meet its obligations under 
the IDEA and unlawfully denied the student FAPE

Oakland Unified Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 2954 (Cal. SEA 2018)

§9 year old student with violent tantrums exhibited 
serious behavioral issues
• When frustrated, the student would cry, make noises, 
and crawl around the floor pretending to be an animal

§Student would frequently elope, escaping from 
the classroom an average of eleven times a week 
for over five hours outside of the classroom a day
• Student wandered the halls and playground yelling 
and screaming, and refused to attend special 
education services

Oakland Unified Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 2954 (Cal. SEA 2018)

§Student’s parent was not supportive of the 
district in their attempts to mitigate the behavior

§IEP Team revised the students placement to a 
more intensive setting
• IEP Team revised the students placement to a more 
intensive setting

§Parent objected, and filed a complaint to have the 
IEP team’s decision overturned
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Oakland Unified Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 2954 (Cal. SEA 2018)

§H.O.: Evidence established that without a more 
restrictive placement such as that contemplated 
by the IEP team, the student would be unlikely to 
make educational progress
• Took note of the district staff’s diligent attempts to 
reduce the student’s behavior and implement effective 
plans to provide educational benefit

§District may implement the IEP without parental 
consent as it was the LRE

Bowe v. Eau Claire Area Sch. Dist.
71 IDELR 168 (W.D. Wis. 2018)

§Parents of a student with Asperger’s Syndrome brought 
suit alleging that a district’s failure to more severely 
punish those bullying their son constituted deliberate 
indifference violating the ADA and Section 504

§Student was a victim in several bullying incidents
• Peers directed derogatory and demeaning insults towards the 

student, often in language that was clearly inappropriate
• Student’s house was also vandalized in acts of bullying
−Bag of feces was left at the home
−On another occasion the house was egged

Bowe v. Eau Claire Area Sch. Dist.
71 IDELR 168 (W.D. Wis. 2018)

§Over the course of the student’s time at the 
district, the student and his parents complained 
of 30 discrete acts of bullying

§“Defendants investigated each complaint, which 
generally involved interviewing the students 
involved, and sometimes the investigation 
included referring the matter to police or 
speaking to the classroom teacher.”
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Bowe v. Eau Claire Area Sch. Dist.
71 IDELR 168 (W.D. Wis. 2018)

§ If the district determined that a student behaved 
inappropriately, it would call the student’s parents or 
implement corrective action
• Corrective action ranged from counseling, suspension, to 

referral for criminal charges
§Court: District “certainly favored counseling” rather than 
more punitive forms of punishment... But...
• The counseling appeared effective in many instances
• Bullying incidents alleged included a large number of 

schoolmates, rather than the repeated actions of a select few

Bowe v. Eau Claire Area Sch. Dist.
71 IDELR 168 (W.D. Wis. 2018)

§Court: “Continued counseling of a handful of 
students after numerous instances of bullying 
might be clearly unreasonable, but the evidence 
does not indicate that’s what happened here.”

§While the court felt that the district should not be 
“particularly proud of its response to the 
problem”, the district did not act with deliberate 
indifference. Therefore, the court ruled for the 
district. 

§

T.B. v. San Diego Unified Sch. Dist.
71 IDELR 195 (S.D. Cal. 2018)

§Despite prevailing in IDEA proceedings, parents 
were unable to recover the full $2 million in 
attorney fees they requested

§Parents brought eighteen claims against the 
district
• Won three claims that centered around the district’s 
refusal to accommodate G-tube feedings 

§Court: Must take into account a parent’s degree 
of success in calculating an appropriate fee award



9/28/18

23

T.B. v. San Diego Unified Sch. Dist.
71 IDELR 195 (S.D. Cal. 2018)

§Court: Lack of success on a number of claims 
justified a reduction of the reward

§District: 84% reduction is appropriate
• Equivalent to the proportion of claims won

§Court: While only three claims were successful, 
the claims were necessary to secure an IEP that 
would allow the student to safely attend school 
with his peers
• 50% reduction was found to be appropriate

St. Louis City Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 4657 (Mo. SEA 2018)

§Kindergarten student began living with 
grandmother, who requested IDEA evaluation 
from his school

§School held an informal meeting and determined 
that they did not have enough information about 
the student because he was still transitioning into 
the district
• Never reconvened to address the student or refer him 
for special education services

St. Louis City Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 4657 (Mo. SEA 2018)

§During the student’s enrollment in the district, he 
exhibited extremely troubling behavior on a regular basis
• In one day, the student threatened a classmate with a rock, 

threw a toy at a student, tried to run away from school, and 
masturbated in class
−Behaviors not unusual for student

• Student threatened to kill a staff member with a knife located 
in a teacher’s desk
• Student used profanity, hit others with belts, and threw rocks 

at classmates
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St. Louis City Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 4657 (Mo. SEA 2018)

§IDEA evaluation requested in September 2014
• School did not convene the initial IDEA eligibility 
conference until April of 2015

§IEP team: Student’s academic performance kept 
him from meeting the standards for intellectual 
disability, and that the team lacked sufficient 
information to warrant a diagnosis of ED
• Although it noted the student’s diagnosis of ADHD, it 
did not assess the student for OHI

St. Louis City Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 4657 (Mo. SEA 2018)

§Behavior continued into first grade
• Several disciplinary suspensions
• Unprovoked, the student walked up to another student 
and punched her several times in the face and head
• On several instances, the student threw a chair at 
classmates and staff
• Elopement was persistent
• One morning the student stole his teacher’s lunch, ran 
away from the classroom, and ate it

St. Louis City Sch. Dist.
118 LRP 4657 (Mo. SEA 2018)

§Despite these issues, the district still did not find 
the student eligible for special education services

§Grandmother filed complaint, alleging the district 
violated the IDEA by not providing special 
education services to the student

§IHO: district failed to meet its child find 
obligations, and in doing so denied FAPE
• Even if he couldn’t be verified under ED, should have 
been verified under OHI after ADHD diagnosis
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Phillips v. Morris Public Schools
71 IDELR 104 (E.D. Okla. 2018)

§Parents of a student with disability brought a due 
process complaint against a district 
• Complaint arose several months into the school year

§While gathering information to respond to the 
parent’s complaint, the district determined that 
the family resided outside of the district
• In Oklahoma, as in many states, residency is to be 
determined on a year-to-year basis

Phillips v. Morris Public Schools
71 IDELR 104 (E.D. Okla. 2018)

§District found the family to be residents when 
they first entered the school system ten years 
before 
• Had not reassessed that determination in any fashion
• District failed to enact policies and procedures for 
residency determinations, although such policies and 
procedures were required under state law
−District maintained a practice of accepting the address 

presented on a utility bill

Phillips v. Morris Public Schools
71 IDELR 104 (E.D. Okla. 2018)

§Court: Implications of state law were that the 
district was required to make residency 
determinations in a timely and orderly fashion
• Against the spirit of state law and IDEA to allow 
residency to remain an open question to be 
challenged after a complaint alleging a failure to meet 
obligations under the IDEA

§Acceptance of student at beginning of year, and 
provision of IEP, made district responsible for the 
remainder of the school year
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J.R. v. Smith
70 IDELR 178 (D. Md. 2017)

§Parents alleged a district predetermined an IEP
§In a call before the meeting, the placement 
specialist told the parent to be “ready for a fight” 
with Mr. Moore, the chair of the IEP Team
• Indicated that Mr. Moore was of the opinion that a 
public school specifically tailored to educate students 
with behavioral issues was the proper placement
−Parents intent on private placement

§IEP determined a public placement was appropriate

J.R. v. Smith
70 IDELR 178 (D. Md. 2017)

§Court: While districts are prohibited from 
predetermining a student’s placement, the 
members of the IEP team may naturally go into a 
meeting with some ideas or opinions
• An open mind is not the same as a blank mind

§Evidence demonstrated the IEP meeting was full 
of robust discussion
• Majority of team agreed with placement

§Placement reasonably calculated to provide FAPE

Crofts v. Issaquah School District
72 IDELR 15 (W.D. Wash. 2018)

§Parents of a student with disabilities brought a 
federal IDEA complaint against a district after an 
ALJ found for the district in administrative 
proceedings

§Parents, who proceeded pro se, sought leave to 
amend their initial complaint to add three district 
employees to the suit in their individual capacities

§These individuals argued that they could not be 
added to the suit as individuals under the IDEA
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Crofts v. Issaquah School District
72 IDELR 15 (W.D. Wash. 2018)

§Court: 9th U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals has not 
addressed the issue
• Turned to the framework and language of the IDEA

§Obligations of the IDEA clearly run to the LEA in 
recipient of federal funds
• No provisions discuss claims against third parties or individual 

employees
§Case law overwhelmingly against individual liability
§Motion to amend denied; IDEA doesn’t provide for 
individual liability

Trujillo v. Sacramento City Sch. Dist.
57 NDLR 9 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§Mother of a student diagnosed with TBI alleged 
she was retaliated against for advocating on 
behalf of her son

§Issues arose when the mother brought the 
student to school and notified office staff that he 
may be drowsy from new sleep medication that 
his doctor prescribed

§By noon, school staff determined that the student 
needed to be sent home

Trujillo v. Sacramento City Sch. Dist.
57 NDLR 9 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§Took over an hour for the mother to return to the 
school and pick him up

§After the student was sent home, his 1:1 aide 
made a complaint to CPS regarding the incident, 
allegedly on the grounds that the mother 
overmedicated the student and brought him to 
school while sick

§During the school year, District also sent three 
letters stating that the student was truant
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Trujillo v. Sacramento City Sch. Dist.
57 NDLR 9 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§According to the mother, the complaint to CPS and the 
truancy letters sent to her home were retaliation against 
her for speaking out at a district school board meeting
• At this meeting, she criticized “corruption in the education 

system as evidenced by overly generous benefits packets.”
§Court: Mother’s statements at the board meeting did not 
constitute protected activity under the IDEA or Section 
504
• Even if her activity was protected the alleged retaliatory 

conduct was insufficiently linked to the activity to make out a 
claim of retaliation

K.M. v. Tehachapi Unified Sch. Dist.
57 NDLR 66 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§Parents of a student with autism requested that their 
child’s district permit an insurance-funded ABA therapist 
to accompany their child at school

§After a contentious IEP development process, IEP team 
proposed an IEP that provided special education services 
through means other than the requested accommodation

§ In response, the parents filed suit alleging the decision 
deprived K.M of equal access and constituted 
discrimination on the basis of disability in violation of 
Section 504 and the ADA
• Complaint did not allege a denial of FAPE

K.M. v. Tehachapi Unified Sch. Dist.
57 NDLR 66 (E.D. Cal. 2018)

§District: Parent’s suit is precluded by the 
exhaustion requirements of the IDEA

§Court: These claims are analogous to those in Fry
• ABA therapist functional equivalent of the service-dog 
in Fry
• Central tenet is that the medically prescribed 
treatment is not being accommodated to allow access 
to the school and its programming
• Exhaustion is not required
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In re: Student with a Disability
72 IDELR 137 (S.D. SEA 2018)

§District unilaterally drafted and implemented a 
behavior contract created to supplement the 
behavior interventions in a student’s IEP

§Behavior plan included several specific verbal and 
non verbal reinforcements for behavior that the 
teacher was supposed to utilize continuously
• Classroom teacher inconsistently used rewards
−Concerned with giving student too much attention
−Would sometimes allow the student to pick the music played 

during class announcements

In re: Student with a Disability
72 IDELR 137 (S.D. SEA 2018)

§After behavior issues persisted with the student, 
the district created an in-school/out-of-school 
suspension plan that governed many of the 
behaviors contemplated by the interventions in 
the student’s IEP

§Parents filed a complaint arguing that the 
district’s actions deprived them of meaningful 
opportunity to participate in the IEP process

In re: Student with a Disability
72 IDELR 137 (S.D. SEA 2018)

§H.O.: Ruled for parents. 
§ IDEA’s requirement to allow parental participation in the 
IEP Team process included more than simply allowing 
them to attend the IEP meetings
• Creation of a suspension plan and the implementation of a 

behavior contract, effectively were revisions or amendments to 
the student’s IEP

§Providing the parents copies of the plans was insufficient 
to allow them to meaningfully monitor and enforce the 
IEP as envisioned by the IDEA
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Howard G. v. State of Hawaii
72 IDELR 59 (D. Haw. 2018)

§After extensive disputes over a student’s 
education, the Hawaii ED instructed the student’s 
service providers not to communicate with the 
parents
• Parents left unable to access crucial information about 
the student’s performance and evaluations
• Withdrew student, put in private placement, and 
brought claims for reimbursement

Howard G. v. State of Hawaii
72 IDELR 59 (D. Haw. 2018)

§H.O.: Parents were excluded from meaningful 
participation in the IEP process, denying the 
student access to FAPE

§Required reimbursement, as it was determined 
the parents successfully demonstrated:
• Student was denied FAPE;
• Private program was appropriate; and
• The equities favor reimbursement

§Court: Upheld Hearing Officer’s decision

Fry, 504 and IDEA
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Click to add title

§The Statutes
§The Good Old Days
§May the Circle be Unbroken?
§Examples of When  the Hoops are Not 
Overlapping 

Sources of Schools’ Obligations To 
Serve Students with Disabilities

§Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act
§Section 504
§Americans with Disabilities Act

IDEA
20 U.S.C. §1415(l)

“Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to restrict or limit
the rights, procedures, and remedies available under the
Constitution, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, title
V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, or other Federal laws
protecting the rights of children with disabilities, except that
before the filing of a civil action under such laws seeking
relief that is also available under this subchapter, the
procedures under subsections (f) and (g) shall be exhausted
to the same extent as would be required had the action been
brought under this subchapter.”
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Section 504
(29 U.S.C. § 794(a))

§ “No otherwise qualified individual with a disability in the
United States . . . shall, solely by reason of her or his
disability, be excluded from the participation in, be denied
the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any
program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance…”

§Entities receiving federal funding to furnish auxiliary aids
which "afford handicapped persons equal opportunity to
obtain the same result, to gain the same benefit, or to
reach the same level of achievement" as others. 45 C.F.R. §
84.4(b)(2).

Americans with Disabilities Act

“No qualified individual with a disability shall, by reason of
such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied
the benefits of the services, programs, or activities or a
public entity, or be subjected to discrimination by any such
entity”

Interaction of ADA/504 & IDEA
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Interaction of ADA, 504 & IDEA

§Dual eligibility does not mean that school must provide an IDEA 
student with a § 504 plan in addition to his/her IEP. Protecting 
Students with Disabilities, 116 LRP 4782 (OCR 10/6/15)

§ IDEA students all also have § 504/ADA protections  Letter to 
Mentink, 19 IDELR 1127 (OCR 1993)

§Parent may not reject IEP and demand § 504 plan Letter to 
McKethan, 25 IDELR 295 (OCR 1996)

§Parent may not use § 504 to obtain accommodations that IEP 
team has rejected Lamkin v. Lone Jack C-6 School District, 58 
IDELR 197 (W.D. Mo. 2012)

Interaction of ADA, 504 & IDEA

§Dual eligibility does not mean that school must provide an IDEA 
student with a § 504 plan in addition to his/her IEP. Protecting 
Students with Disabilities, 116 LRP 4782 (OCR 10/6/15)

§ IDEA students all also have § 504/ADA protections  Letter to 
Mentink, 19 IDELR 1127 (OCR 1993)

§Parent may not reject IEP and demand § 504 plan Letter to 
McKethan, 25 IDELR 295 (OCR 1996)

§Parent may not use § 504 to obtain accommodations that IEP 
team has rejected Lamkin v. Lone Jack C-6 School District, 58 
IDELR 197 (W.D. Mo. 2012)

IDEA students all also have §
504/ADA protections
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B.C. v. Mount Vernon Sch. Dist.
837 F.3d 152 (2d Cir. 2016)

§Two students placed in remedial courses by IEP 
team, but courses didn’t count toward graduation

§Sued claiming that policy of scheduling remedial 
courses during school hours disparately impacted 
students with disabilities under § 504 and ADA

§District Court granted school summary judgement 
because plaintiffs submitted no evidence of 
disability other than students’ IDEA identification

B.C. v. Mount Vernon Sch. Dist.
837 F.3d 152 (2d Cir. 2016)

§Court:
• “Although many, if not most, IDEA-eligible individuals may 
also be handicapped under the ADA [the] Plaintiffs’ 
approach reads the ADA’s substantial limitation 
requirement . . . out of that statute.” 
• “the ADA and IDEA set forth distinct legal standards in 
their definitions of ‘disability’ such than an individual will 
not qualify for the ADA’s protections simply virtue of his or 
her disabled status under the IDEA.”

B.C. v. Mount Vernon Sch. Dist.
837 F.3d 152 (2d Cir. 2016)

§Court:
• “an IDEA disability is not equivalent to a disability as 
cognizable under the ADA and Section 504. Plaintiffs, 
therefore, cannot rely solely on ‘receipt of special 
education’ to establish and ADA or Section 504 disability.”

§But see Letter to Veir, 20 IDELR 864 (OCR 1993) 
(OCR "cannot conceive of any situation in which 
[IDEA-eligible] children would not also be” covered 
by 504.").
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Parent may not reject IEP and demand 
§ 504 plan§Authority supporting this position

• Letter to McKethan, 25 IDELR 295 (OCR 1996)
• Lamkin v. Lone Jack C-6 Sch. Dist., 2012 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 
188808 (W.D. Mo. Mar. 1, 2012)

§Rejected (but in dicta) by: 
• Kimble v. Douglas Co. Sch. Dist. RE-1, 60 IDELR 221 (D. 
Colo. 2013)
• D.F. v. Leon Co. Sch. Bd. 62 IDELR 167 (N.D. Fla. 2014)

Northamptom Area Sch. Dist.,
62 IDELR 167 (Penn. SEA 2014)

§Dispute over whether 6th grade student should be 
identified SLD or EBD

§Parent revoked consent for special ed services
§Due process filed by both parent and school
§Parent asserted claims under both IDEA and § 504
§School: no 504 protections when parent has revoked

Northamptom Area Sch. Dist.,
62 IDELR 167 (Penn. SEA 2014)

§IHO
• “The Student was entitled to the protections and 
safeguards of Section 504 even while the Parent had 
revoked consent for IDEA services. . . . There is no dispute 
that the Student did not receive a Section 504 plan, 
formalizing the provision of Section 504 accommodations, 
at any time. The District's failure to provide a written 
Section 504 plan, therefore violates [Section 504].”
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The Supreme Court Weighs in….

Fry v. Napoleon Cmty. Sch.
137 S. Ct. 743 (2017)

§E.F. has cerebral palsy
§Parents bought “Wonder” the goldendoodle
service dog who assisted E.F. with regular “life 
activities”

§Parents requested that Wonder attend school
§School denied the request

So where are These Multiple “Hoops” 
Going to Arise?

§Service Animals
§Communication
§Extracurriculars
§Abuse Claims
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Service Animal Claims

Americans with Disabilities Act
35 C.F.R. § 35.136

§“Generally, a public entity shall modify its 
policies, practices and procedures to permit the 
use of a service animal”

Bakersfield (CA) City School District
50 IDELR 169 (OCR January 25, 2008)

§OCR did not determine whether dog qualified as a 
service animal

§Found school violated Section 504 and ADA Title 
II by unilaterally denying it as a health & safety 
risk to others

§School did not review dog’s training, function or 
impact on student’s education
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Bakersfield (CA) City School District
50 IDELR 169 (OCR January 25, 2008)

§Parent should have been allowed to bring Section 
504 challenge (grievance or Section 504 hearing) 
on denial of service animal

§Even if dog did not qualify as service animal, 
district should have considered whether it was 
necessary for student to receive FAPE

Alboniga v. School Bd. of Broward 
County, Fla., 

65 IDELR 7 (S.D. Fla. 2015)

§6-year-old with multiple disabilities wanted to 
bring service dog to school

§School
• Refused to provide extra assistance to take dog 
outside
• Required parent to obtain additional vaccinations and 
liability insurance for the animal

§Parent sued alleging ADA violation

Alboniga v. School Bd. of Broward 
County, Fla., 

65 IDELR 7 (S.D. Fla. 2015)

§Court:
• Failure to provide an employee to assist the child with 
the dog's routine care amounted to a failure to 
accommodate
• "[The district] is being asked to accommodate [the 
child], not to accommodate, or care for, [the dog]."



9/28/18

39

Alboniga v. School Bd. of Broward 
County, Fla., 

65 IDELR 7 (S.D. Fla. 2015)

§Court:
• Ability of teachers and paraprofessionals to detect and 
address his seizures did not matter
• "[R]efusing [the parent's] requested accommodation if it 
is reasonable in favor of one the [district] prefers is akin 
to allowing the public entity to dictate the type of services 
a [person with a disability] needs in contravention of that 
person's own decision's regarding his own life and care" 

Gates-Chili Central School District, 
65 IDELR 15251 (DOJ April 13, 2015)

§DOJ sued school for failing to allow service animal
§Settlement agreement required district to 
“provid[e] assistance to a student with a 
disability in tethering or untethering the service 
animal and escorting a student with a disability 
throughout the school or campus as he or she is 
accompanied by a service animal, and assisting a 
student with a communication disability in issuing 
commands to the service animal.”

Effective Communication
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ADA Effective Communication 
Regulations

§The District must “ensure that communications with 
applicants applicants, participants, members of the 
public, and companions with disabilities are as 
effective as communications with others.” 28 C.F.R. §
35.160(a)(1)

§In determining what type of auxiliary aid and service 
is necessary, a school “shall give primary 
consideration to the requests of the individual with 
disabilities” or the student’s family in an educational 
context. 28 C.F.R. § 35.160(b)(2)

ADA Effective Communication 
Regulations

§The District need not, under Title II, “take any 
action that it can demonstrate would result in a 
fundamental alteration in the nature of a service, 
program, or activity on in undue financial and 
administrative burdens.”  28 C.F.R. § 35.164

K.M. by Bright v. Tustin Unified Sch. 
Dist., 

61 IDELR 182 (9th Cir. 2013) cert. denied

§Hearing impaired students requested 
Communication Access Real-time Translation 
(CART) services  from school 

§IEP team said “no” – not required for FAPE
§Parents requested due process hearing
§Hearing officer and District Court ruled for the 
school—no denial of FAPE under the IDEA; and 
therefore, no violation of Title II of the ADA.
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K.M. by Bright v. Tustin Unified Sch. 
Dist., 

61 IDELR 182 (9th Cir. 2013) cert. denied

§9th Circuit: compliance with IDEA standards does 
not necessarily satisfy ADA
• “…the IDEA and Title II differ in both ends and means. 
Substantively, the IDEA sets only a floor of access to 
education for children with communications 
disabilities, but requires school districts to provide the 
individualized services necessary to get a child to that 
floor, regardless of the costs, administrative burdens, 
or program alterations required.”

K.M. by Bright v. Tustin Unified Sch. 
Dist., 

61 IDELR 182 (9th Cir. 2013) cert. denied

§9th Circuit: compliance with IDEA standards does 
not necessarily satisfy ADA
• “Title II and its implementing regulations, taken 
together, require public entities to take steps towards 
making existing services not just accessible, but 
equally accessible to people with communication 
disabilities, but only insofar as doing so does not pose 
an undue burden or require a fundamental alteration 
of their programs.”

Argenyi v. Creighton Univ.
46 NDLR 128 (8th Cir. 2013)

§Medical student with profound hearing loss and 
coclear implants

§Requested
• FM system transmitting directly to implants in groups 
of 8 or fewer students
• CART for lectures
• Cued speech interpreter for labs 
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Argenyi v. Creighton Univ.
46 NDLR 128 (8th Cir. 2013)

§University provided only FM system
§Student paid for CART and interpreters himself 
($53,000)

§University later refused to allow interpreter in 
clinic

Argenyi v. Creighton Univ.
46 NDLR 128 (8th Cir. 2013)

§Student sued under Title II of the ADA and § 504 
§University: FM transmitter should have been 
enough 

§Court:
• “the individual with a disability is most familiar with 
his or her disability and is in the best positon to 
determine what type of aid or service will be effective”

2014 Dear Colleague Letter
64 IDELR 180 (2014)

§DOJ/OSERS/OCR “Frequently Asked Questions on 
Effective Communication for Students with 
Hearing, Vision, or Speech Disabilities in Public 
Elementary and Secondary Schools”

§On March 5, 2015, NSBA responded with a strong 
protest letter.
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2014 Dear Colleague Letter
64 IDELR 180 (2014)

§On June 15, 2015, DOJ/OSERS/OCR replied to 
NSBA in Letter to Negron, 65 IDELR 304 
(DOJ/OSERS/OCR 2015) and reiterated, “To 
comply with both statutes, a school may have to 
provide additional and different aids and 
services.”

In re Seattle (WA) Sch. Dist. No. 1
67 IDELR 22 (OCR 2015)

§Dispute over hearing impaired student calling 
home

§Mother offered to provide the district with a 
captioned telephone

§School: TTY not required for FAPE
§Mother filed complaint with OCR

In re Seattle (WA) Sch. Dist. No. 1
67 IDELR 22 (OCR 2015)

§OCR: “the regulation requires that, in 
determining what types  of auxiliary aids and 
services are necessary, a public entity shall give 
primary consideration to the request of the 
individual with a disability.  In order to be 
effective, auxiliary aids and services must be 
provided . . . in such a way as to protect the 
privacy and independence of the individual with a 
disability.”
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What is a “Communication 
Disability?”

§What is a “communication disability?”
• Hearing impairment
• Visual impairment
• Processing errors
• Autism?

Pollack v. Reg’l Sch. Unit. 75,
69 IDELR 271 (D.C. Maine 2017)

§Student with autism with limited verbal 
communication

§Parents requested that student be allowed to 
wear body camera at school
• review announcements and other information that 
students are expected to convey to their parents
• Assist student in telling parents about his day at 
school 
• Assist parents in advocating for student

Pollack v. Reg’l Sch. Unit. 75,
69 IDELR 271 (D.C. Maine 2017)

§School refused
• Violated school policy
• Concerns about peer privacy
• Violated negotiated agreement with teachers’ union
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Pollack v. Reg’l Sch. Unit. 75,
69 IDELR 271 (D.C. Maine 2017)

§Court:
• “The Plaintiffs read the regulation as requiring the District 
to ensure that B.P.’s communication with his parents about 
his school day is as effective as nondisabled students.  But 
this reading of the regulation extends its reach beyond the 
schoolhouse doors to communications between parents 
and child outside of the school setting.”
• No evidence camera necessary for parent advocacy

Extracurricular Activities

§School districts must provide nonacademic and
extracurricular services and activities in "such a
manner as is necessary to afford students with a
disability an equal opportunity for participation in
such services and activities”

§These activities may include “physical and
recreational athletics, . . . recreational activities,
special interest groups or clubs…..”

Section 504
34 CFR 104.37(a)(1)
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Americans with Disabilities Act

“No qualified individual with a disability shall, by
reason of such disability, be excluded from
participation in or be denied the benefits of the
services, programs, or activities or a public entity,
or be subjected to discrimination by any such
entity”

Americans with Disabilities Act
28 C.F.R. § 35.160(a)(1)

A public entity, in providing any aid, benefit, or
service, may not directly or through contractual
licensing or other arrangements, deny on the basis
of disability a qualified individual the opportunity
to participate in or benefit from the aid, benefit, or
service.

Americans with Disabilities Act
28 CFR 35.130(b)(1)(i)
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Schools do NOT have to provide 
accommodations it:

§It creates an undue burden 
• Functionally non-existent 
• OCR: “based on OCR’s experience, such a defense 
would rarely, if ever, prevail in the context of 
extracurricular athletics:

§It is a fundamental alteration that 
• Changes an essential aspect of the activity
• Gives the student with a disability an unfair advantage

"Dear Colleague" Letter
60 IDELR 167 (OCR 1/25/13)

§“. . . school districts may require a level of skill or
ability of a student in order for that student to
participate in a selective or competitive program
or activity so long as the selection or competition
criteria are not discriminatory”

“Dear Colleague Letter,” 
60 IDELR 167 (OCR 1/25/13)

§“In considering whether a reasonable modification is
legally required, the school district must first engage
in an individualized inquiry to determine whether the
modification is necessary. If the modification is
necessary, the school district must allow it unless
doing so would result in a fundamental alteration of
the nature of the extracurricular athletic activity.”
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Class v. Towson Univ.,
806 F.3d 236 (4th Cir. 2015)

§Division I football player suffered from heatstroke
• Coma for 9 days
• Liver transplant
• Hospitalized for 2 months
• Chemo for post-transplant complications

§Weakened abdominal wall and heightened 
susceptibility to heatstroke 

Class v. Towson Univ.,
806 F.3d 236 (4th Cir. 2015)

§Rehabbed with goal of returning to play Division I 
football again

§Team physician refused medical clearance 
§Requested accommodations
• Additional abdominal padding
• Internal heat monitor with Bluetooth reporting every 
5-10 minutes
• Direct medical supervision

Class v. Towson Univ.,
806 F.3d 236 (4th Cir. 2015)

§College refused; student sued
§District court ruled for student, issued injunction
§College appealed 
§School’s arguments:
• Financial and administrative burdens 
• Accommodations would not decrease risk of 
heatstroke
• Accommodations would fundamentally alter the 
activity
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Class v. Towson Univ.,
806 F.3d 236 (4th Cir. 2015)

§4th Circuit
• Failure to prove financial and administrative burden
• Accommodations ineffective 
• Accommodations would be fundamental alteration

Raytown (MO) C-2 Sch. Dist, 
53 IDELR 239 (OCR 2009)

§6 year old with autism 
§Parent wanted him to stay in aftercare program
§Program excluded students who required toileting 
assistance, a separate location due to behavioral 
issues, and one-to-one assistance

Raytown (MO) C-2 Sch. Dist, 
53 IDELR 239 (OCR 2009)

§District: having additional assistance available for 
BD students fundamentally altered the program

§OCR: district's rationale a pretext for 
discrimination
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Raytown (MO) C-2 Sch. Dist, 
53 IDELR 239 (OCR 2009)

§Adding “supervision and services does not 
fundamentally alter the nature of a program 
designed to provide supervision for children," 

§Children with disabilities cannot be categorically 
excluded from voluntary day care programs run 
by public school districts

504 as Basis for Abuse Claims

J.M. v. Francis Howell Sch. Dist. 
2017 U.S. App. LEXIS 3991(8th Cir. Mar. 6, 2017)

§J.M. suffered from: ADHD, ASD, anxiety disorder, 
separation anxiety disorder, panic disorder, and 
generalized anxiety

§Lawsuit alleged that he was consistently put in 
physical restraints and isolation

§Started as IDEA lawsuit, then amended to 
remove IDEA and add ADA and 504
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J.M. v. Francis Howell Sch. Dist. 
2017 U.S. App. LEXIS 3991(8th Cir. Mar. 6, 2017)

§Court: claims amount to a FAPE denial
• Complaint doesn’t list “discrimination” and instead 
discusses “denial of services”
• Parents did not start IDEA due process, but they pled 
it

§Fry did not answer when the pleadings suggest 
FAPE denial but the plaintiff is seeking damages 

§8th Circuit assumed the actual damages sought 
was not dispositive so long FAPE denial made up 
the basis

K.G. v. Sergeant Bluff-Luton Comm. Sch. 
Dist.

244 F. Supp. 3d 904 (N.D. IA.2017)

§9-year-old student with autism and epilepsy
§Student having meltdown; dragged him across 
the carpeted  classroom floor

§“An inspection of the student’s back revealed 
several wounds, including injuries on his right and 
left shoulder blades  and a laceration of 
approximately five inches down the middle of his 
back.”

K.G. v. Sergeant Bluff-Luton Comm. Sch. 
Dist.

244 F. Supp. 3d 904 (N.D. IA.2017)

§Family filed federal lawsuit against teacher, principal, 
school
• Student treated for serious “emotional distress” and 
“suffering”
• Now allegedly suffering from PTSD
• Alleged violations under ADA and 504, not IDEA

§Family turned down $100,000 settlement offer
§Asking for $10,000,000, attorney’s fees, and punitive 
damages
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K.G. v. Sergeant Bluff-Luton Comm. Sch. 
Dist. 

244 F. Supp. 3d 904 (N.D. IA.2017)

§District Court: no summary judgment for school
• Complaint only referenced IEP and BIP to show how 
unreasonable the actions were
• 504 and ADA claims allege discrimination and hostile 
environment
• Student could bring complaint against library
• Adult could bring complaint against school

§Family starting IDEA process is not dispositive
§They can change their minds after consulting with 
counsel

Practical Take-Aways
§Need for Training – admins and staff
§If Parents Revoke 
• Make and document 504 Offer
• Can be the same set of services

§If Parents Demand Accommodations Rejected by IEP 
Team  
• Consider under 504 “hoop”
• Consider whether requested 504 accomodation undermines 
IEP 

§Keep Pleading Exhaustion….

Questions?

Karen Haase
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